
Chief Executive’s Office 
Chief Executive:  N.M. Pringle 

To:  All Members of Cabinet: 
Councillors: 
 R.J. Phillips (Leader)
 G.V. Hyde (Deputy Leader)
 Mrs. L.O. Barnett
 P.J. Edwards
 Mrs. J.P. French
 J.C. Mayson
 D.W. Rule MBE
 R.V. Stockton
 D.B. Wilcox
 R.M. Wilson 

Your Ref:  

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct Line/Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

 

NMP/CD 

Mr. N.M. Pringle 

(01432) 260044 

(01432) 340189 

npringle@herefordshire.gov.uk 

19th November, 2003 

 

Dear Councillor, 
 
MEETING OF CABINET 
THURSDAY, 27TH NOVEMBER, 2003 AT 2.15 P.M. 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD 
 

AGENDA (03/18) 
 
 
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 To receive any apologies for absence.   
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 To receive any declarations of interest by members in respect of items on this agenda.   
  
3. COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT: IMPROVEMENT REPORTING   
  
 To receive an update on the Comprehensive Performance Assessment process and report on 

the publication of the revised score card which is due to be published on 18th December, 
2003.  (Pages 1 - 2) 

  
4. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN   
  
 To approve the Performance Management Action Plan (December 2003 to March 2004). 

(Pages 3 - 6) 
  
5. WRITE-OFFS DURING 2002/03 FINANCIAL YEAR   
  
 To note the levels of write-offs during the 2002/03 financial year.  (Pages 7 - 14) 
  

. 



6. RESPONSE TO THE CONSULTATION ON THE GOVERNMENT'S GREEN PAPER 
"EVERY CHILD MATTERS"   

  
 To determine the Council's response to the above-described Green Paper (Report to follow)   
  
7. POSITION STATEMENT FOR REPLACEMENT POOL FOR NORTH HEREFORDSHIRE   
  
 To note the timetable, costings and detailed design for the provision of a new pool in 

Leominster.  (Pages 15 - 16) 
  
EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
In the opinion of the Proper Officer, the appendix to the report will not be, or is likely not to 
be, open to the public and press at the time it is considered. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the public be excluded from the meeting during discussion on the appendix to the 
report for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12(A) of the Act as indicated below. 
 
  

POSITION STATEMENT FOR A REPLACEMENT POOL FOR NORTH HEREFORDSHIRE 
(EXEMPT APPENDIX)   

  
 To consider the financial implications of a replacement pool for North Herefordshire.  (Pages 

17 - 18) 
  
This appendix to the main report discloses the amount of any expenditure proposed to be 
incurred by the authority under any particular contract for the acquisition of property or the 
supply of goods or services. 
 
 
  
 Yours sincerely,  
 

 
N.M. PRINGLE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 
Copies to: Chairman of the Council 

Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Vice-Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Chairmen of Scrutiny Committees 
Group Leaders 
Directors 
Herefordshire Commercial Services Manager 
County Secretary and Solicitor 
County Treasurer 

 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\7\5\AI00002577\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc19/11/03 

The Public's Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 

unless the business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or 
‘exempt' information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of 
the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees 
and written statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members for up to six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a 
period of up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the 
background papers to a report is given at the end of each report).  A 
background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing 
the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all 
Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to 
items to be considered in public) made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have 
delegated decision making to their officers identifying the officers 
concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of 
access, subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a 
maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50, for postage).   

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to 
inspect and copy documents. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\7\5\AI00002577\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc19/11/03 

 
Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large print, Braille or 
on tape.  Please contact the officer named below in advance of the meeting 
who will be pleased to deal with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for visitors 
in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 

Public Transport links 

Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via bus route 74.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you have any questions about this Agenda, how the Council works or would 
like more information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information 
described above, you may do so either by telephoning Mrs Christine Dyer on 
01432 260222 or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 
p.m. Monday - Thursday and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council 
Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 



FIREBROCK0.doc 21.05.97 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at the southern entrance to 
the car park.  A check will be undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to collect coats or other 
personal belongings. 





 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
N.M. Pringle, Chief Executive, on (01432) 260044 

CPA0.doc  

COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT: 
IMPROVEMENT REPORTING 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY: 
AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

CABINET  27TH NOVEMBER, 2003 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To receive an update on the Comprehensive Performance Assessment process and report 
on the publication of the revised score card which is due to be published on 18th December, 
2003. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision   

Recommendation 

THAT the arrangements for the publication of the revised score card be noted but 
Cabinet indicates that if, in due course, the Council qualifies for a proportionate 
Corporate Assessment then the opportunity for a proportionate Corporate 
Assessment be not taken up 

Reasons 

The Cabinet needs to be in a position to respond quickly when the revised score card is 
published on 18th December, 2003. 

Considerations 

1. The Audit Commission published its proposals for interim revision to the 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) scores pending the Audit 
Commission’s proposals for a revised full Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
in 2005. 

2. There was significant pressure from those authorities who had either shown 
significant improvements in performance since the last Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment or whose scores had been “artificially” depressed because of poor 
scores in particular areas of service.  Herefordshire Council would potentially have 
been affected by those rules because, as has previously been explained, the addition 
of 1 point to the service score would bring the Council potentially into the Excellent 
category.  However, the Audit Commission scheme does not permit an authority to 
be categorised Excellent if it has a score of 1 within the Environment block.   

3. On the information currently available to the Council, it would appear that the 

AGENDA ITEM 3

1



Council’s service score will improve although it is important to emphasise that this 
can only be confirmed when the revised score card is received in December.  There 
are some elements of the score card which are still not available to the Council.  The 
Audit Commission assessment process is a complex one and the Environment score 
failed to achieve a 2 by the narrowest of margins.  There has, however, been only 
limited re-assessment in the Environment area and the potential for revision in that 
area is therefore less likely. 

4. The Audit Commission plainly do not have the capacity to undertake a revised 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment for every authority that improves 
sufficiently in service terms and thus moves into the next category.  The Commission 
was unwilling, for reasons which can be readily understood to reclassify authorities 
on the basis of a change to the service score alone.  It has, therefore, developed the 
concept of a proportionate Corporate Assessment in circumstances where the 
service score threshold is achieved.  It has, however, set a higher threshold in terms 
of the Corporate Assessment which will have to be achieved if the authority is to be 
reclassified.  The Council’s Corporate Assessment score whilst categorised Good 
was below the revised threshold which has now been announced.    

5. The judgement which therefore has to be made is whether the Council should be 
willing to pursue an opportunity for a proportionate Corporate Assessment if the 
thresholds previously described are achieved.  There are a number of elements to 
that judgement.  Perhaps one of the most important is whether such a revised 
assessment would add to the improvement process.  Cabinet received a report on 
progress on the Improvement Plan at its meeting on 25th September from which it 
was clear that sound progress was being made.  However, there are a significant 
number of elements of the Improvement Plan which will not be wholly completed 
within a single year.  Consideration also has to be given to the weight of inspection 
which the Council has already faced in the current year.  On balance, therefore, it is 
felt that a proportionate re-assessment would make insufficient contribution to the 
Council’s Improvement Planning to justify the inevitable disruption of further 
inspection.  Rather it would benefit the Council to concentrate on consolidating those 
improvements in time for the revised Comprehensive Performance Assessment in 
2005.  For that reason it is not felt that the opportunity for a proportionate re-
assessment should be taken should the improvement to the service score make the 
Council eligible. 

Alternative Options 

The alternative option is to proceed with a proportionate Corporate Assessment should the 
Council be eligible. 

Risk Management 

The risks centre on the management of the Council’s reputation.  It would assist the 
Council’s reputation if it was to be reclassified as Excellent.  It might, however, diminish 
commitment to the Improvement Plan. 

Consultees 

This report has not been the subject of consultation. 

2



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Sue Griffiths, Head of Performance Management , on (01432) 260476 

PerformanceManagementActionPlan0.doc  

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  ACTION PLAN 

PROGRAMME AREA REPONSIBILITY: 
AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  

CABINET 27TH NOVEMBER, 2003 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To approve the Performance Management Action Plan (December 2003 to March 2004) 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Recommendations 

That the Performance Management Action Plan be approved. 

Reasons 

As per attached paper 

Considerations 

1. The post of Head of Performance Management was created as a response to the 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) recommendation that Herefordshire 
Council required a more rigorous approach to performance management.  The 
successful appointee took up post on 15th September, 2003 and following a period 
of analysis and consultation has produced an action plan reflecting priorities to March 
2004.  

2. The action plan has taken into account the recommendations contained in other key 
documents, such as the CPA Improvement Plan and the Performance Management 
Framework. and these are signposted.  One of the intentions of the role is to provide 
a focus for pulling together various strands of work in this area.  

3. The approach adopted by the Head of Performance Management reflects the Audit 
Commission’s approach and Cabinet will note that her membership of the IDeA/Audit 
Commission Performance Management Reference Group will ensure that 
Herefordshire Council will be kept up to date with any new thinking. 

4. The action plan is set out against the relevant indicators of the EFQM model to 
ensure a holistic approach is adopted and progress reporting and any further plans 
will also be set out in this way.  The plan includes measures to communicate and 
embed a performance management culture as well as more specific activities such 
as monitoring the LPSA targets.  Both types of actions are required if the Council is 
to evidence improvement at the next CPA in 2005. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

3



5. It should be remembered that the Head of Performance Management post reports 
directly to the Chief Executive and, therefore, it is necessary to work with officers 
from across Directorates and Divisions to achieve the required outcomes.  To this 
end two groups have been established, the Performance Leads Group, who as 
Heads of Service have a key role as champions, and the PI Coordinators group who 
will be able to assist with detailed policies and procedures.  Both groups have met 
and have further meetings planned before Christmas.  The Head of Performance 
Management also works closely with other key officers including the Head of HR, 
another new corporate role. 

6. The action plan presents clear priorities and accountabilities over the next four 
months and regular progress reports will be made available both for Chief 
Executive’s Management Team  and elected Members 

Risk Management 

The Council scored 2 out of a possible 4 for the performance management aspect of the 
CPA.  Without improvement to this score the Council is unlikely to reach an Excellent 
assessment and benefit from the associated freedoms.  Failing to monitor the performance 
of services whether provided directly or through partners may mean that value for money is 
not being achieved.  Failure to meet LPSA targets will have significant financial 
consequences for the Council. 

Consultees 

There are no consultees. 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

4



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 D
ec

 2
00

3 
– 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

Pe
rf

or
m
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

03
 –

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

In
di
ca

to
r 

A
ct

io
n 

W
ho

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 O

ut
co

m
es

 
M

ea
su

re
 

Li
nk

 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Pl
an

 –
D

es
ig

n 
ov

er
vi

ew
 a

nd
 r

ev
ie

w 
pr

oc
es

s
H

ea
d 

of
 P

 M
 a

nd
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
Le

ad
s 

En
su

re
 t

ha
t 

ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

co
rp

or
at

el
y 

ow
ne

d 
an

d 
de

liv
er

ed
 

A
ll 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
de

liv
er

ed
 t

o 
ti

m
es

ca
le

 

CP
A

 

 
D

es
ig

n 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
Ch

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
er

s 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
 M

 a
nd

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

Le
ad

s 

Cl
ar

it
y 

of
 e

xp
ec

ta
ti

on
s 

of
 

Se
ni

or
 M

an
ag

er
s 

Se
lf

 r
ep

or
ti

ng
 

PM
F 

 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
of

 P
 M

 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

in
 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

s/
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
 M

 
,P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

Le
ad

s 
an

d 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t 

Ev
al

ua
ti

on
 o

f 
va

ri
ou

s 
ev

en
ts

/m
at

er
ia

ls
 

PM
F 

Pe
op

le
 

D
ev

is
e 

sy
st

em
 t

o 
m

on
it

or
 

H
R 

St
ra

te
gy

 
H

ea
d 

of
 P

 M
 a

nd
 

H
ea

d 
of

 H
R 

Ke
y 

H
R 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ar

e 
fu

lly
 e

m
be

dd
ed

 
A

ll 
ta

rg
et

s 
de

liv
er

ed
 t

o 
ti

m
es

ca
le

 

CP
A

 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
an

d 
Re

so
ur

ce
s

D
ev

is
e/

co
or

di
na

te
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
on

it
or

in
g 

re
: 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
 M

 a
nd

 
“C

on
tr

ac
t 

M
an

ag
er

s”
 

Th
at

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
de

liv
er

ed
 b

y 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 p

er
fo

rm
 t

o 
re

qu
ir

ed
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ke
y 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
ta

rg
et

s 
ar

e 
m

et
 

N
ew

 

Pr
oc

es
se

s 
Fi

na
lis

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
D

ri
ve

r 
H

ea
d 

of
 P

 M
, 

Po
lic

y 
Te

am
 a

nd
 

PI
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
s 

Fi
na

l f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

us
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 

Ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

us
e 

in
 a

ud
it

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

s 
 

PM
F 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
 M

 a
nd

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

Le
ad

s 

Co
ns

is
te

nt
 u

se
 o

f 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

ke
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 

A
ll 

de
fi

ne
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
re

 
us

in
g 

CP
A

 

 
Fi

na
lis

e 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t 

ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 

de
vi

se
 t

ra
in

in
g 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
 M

, 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

Le
ad

s 
an

d 
Tr

ea
su

re
r 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f 
st

ra
te

gy
 

an
d 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 t

o 
im

pl
em

en
t 

Ev
al

ua
ti

on
 o

f 
va

ri
ou

s 
ev

en
ts

 
CP

A
 

5



 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 D
ec

 2
00

3 
– 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

2 

In
di
ca

to
r 

A
ct

io
n 

W
ho

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 O

ut
co

m
es

 
M

ea
su

re
 

Li
nk

 
Pe

op
le
 R

es
ul
ts

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
us

e 
of

 s
ta

ff
 

su
rv

ey
 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
 M

, 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l 

M
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 
Re

se
ar

ch
 T

ea
m

 

Co
ns

is
te

nt
 u

se
 o

f 
20

03
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
 

pl
an

s 

Ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

us
e 

in
 a

ud
it

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

s 

CP
A

 

Ke
y 

Pe
rf

or
m
an

ce
 

Re
su

lt
s 

M
on

it
or

/r
ep

or
t 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
n 

LP
SA

 
H

ea
d 

of
 P

 M
, 

A
nd

re
w 

Ta
nn

er
, 

Jo
hn

 E
ad

es
 

Co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

nd
 p

ro
ac

ti
ve

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 t

o 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 
pr

og
re

ss
 t

o 
ta

rg
et

s 

LP
SA

 t
ar

ge
ts

 
ar

e 
m

et
 o

r 
wi

th
in

 
ag

re
ed

 s
ho

rt
fa

ll 

LP
SA

 

 
D

ev
is

e 
va

lid
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

KP
I’

s 
H

ea
d 

of
 P

M
, 

A
ud

it
, P

I 
Co

or
di

na
to

rs
 

Re
lia

bl
e 

an
d 

ac
cu

ra
te

 d
at

a
N

o 
qu

al
if

ie
d 

PI
’s 

BV
PP

 

 
En

su
re

 f
re

qu
en

cy
 o

f 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

on
it

or
in

g 
re

po
rt

s 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
 M

 a
nd

 
PI

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

s 
A

gr
ee

d 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

is
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

Re
po

rt
s 

to
 

Ca
bi

ne
t/

Sc
ru

ti
ny

 
Co

m
m

it
te

es
 

PM
F 

 
D

ev
is

e 
an

d 
m

on
it

or
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

re
po

rt
in

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
 M

 a
nd

 
PI

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

s 
Co

ns
is

te
nt

 f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

wh
ic

h 
m

ee
ts

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
ll 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
r 

us
er

s 

Su
rv

ey
 o

f 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

r 
us

er
s 

PM
F 

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
ne

ed
 f

or
 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

da
ta

ba
se

 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
 M

 a
nd

 
PI

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

s 
A

na
ly

se
 n

ee
d 

an
d 

as
se

ss
 

ex
is

ti
ng

 s
ys

te
m

s/
po

ss
ib

le
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 

A
gr

ee
d 

sy
st

em
 

wh
ic

h 
m

ee
ts

 
Co

un
ci

l’s
 n

ee
ds

 

PM
F 

In
no

va
ti
on

 
an

d 
Le

ar
ni
ng

 
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

 I
D

eA
/A

ud
it

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Gr
ou

p 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
M

 
In

fl
ue

nc
e 

on
 a

nd
 a

dv
an

ce
 

no
ti

ce
 o

f 
CP

A
 

cr
it

er
ia

/g
oo

d 
pr

ac
ti

ce
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 C
PA

 
ra

ti
ng

 o
n 

PM
 

N
ew

 

Ke
y:

 C
PA

 -
 C

PA
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Pl
an

, P
M

F 
– 

PM
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k,
 L

PS
A

 –
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t,

 B
VP

P 
– 

Be
st

 V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

la
n 

6



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Jane Salt, Assistant County Treasurer (Revenue and Benefit Services) on (01432) 260399 

2002/03 Write-offs  

WRITE-OFFS DURING 2002/03 FINANCIAL YEAR 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY:  CORPORATE STRATEGY AND 
FINANCE 

CABINET  27TH NOVEMBER, 2003 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To note the levels of write-offs during the 2002/2003 financial year. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision   

Recommendation 

THAT the position be noted. 

Reason 

The report is for general information. 

Financial Implications 

Provision is made for such write-offs in determining the Council Tax base, approved as part 
of the budget process. 

Irrecoverable amounts in respect of National Non-Domestic Rates are fully reimbursed by 
Central Government, therefore there is no cost to the Authority. 

The irrecoverable amounts for Sundry Debtors are recharged to the originating department, 
each being responsible for having due regard to these amounts during the budget process. 

Considerations 

In general, debts considered for write-off fell into five main categories: 

• Bankruptcy or liquidation. 

• Written off by Magistrates at Committal hearing. 

• Unable to trace debtors.  

• No further action possible. 

AGENDA ITEM 5

7



• Sundry debts below £100. 

When a debtor is made bankrupt or has gone into liquidation, a claim is lodged and the 
matter is placed in the hands of the Receiver and no further effective action can be taken.  
Owing to the fact that under current legislation, local authority debts are, in the main non-
preferential, the chances of realising significant payment are slight. 

Both Council Tax and Business Rate cases are, where possible, progressed to the 
Committal to prison stage of recovery.  At this stage the Magistrate has the power to remit 
part or all of the debt and the amount they remit has to be written off.  

In a number of cases, the debtor has vacated and left no forwarding address.  Enquiries are 
made including accessing other information held by the Council, contacting other local 
authorities and organisations.  For Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates we also obtain 
information from the Council’s external bailiffs and also use the Council’s visiting officers. 
However, in some cases, no information is forthcoming and there is no other option but for 
the debt to be written off. 

Small balances may be uneconomic to collect and are, therefore, written off.  This may also 
apply in cases where the debtor is deceased and has left no funds or where a debtor has 
emigrated.  Similarly, where credit balances remain, and they are less than £10, refunds are 
not issued on the grounds of economy, or if a customer is deceased and no executor details 
can be found, the credits are written back. 

Sundry Debts are only written off after approval has been received from the originating 
department. We review annually the process as part of the Service Level Agreement 
discussions. 

The total amounts written off during the financial year in respect of Council Tax, Non-
Domestic Rates and Sundry debts can be found at Appendices A, B and C respectively.  

Write-offs for both Council Tax and NNDR have reduced considerably from the previous 
year.  The total amount written off by Herefordshire Council since 1 April 1998 represents 
0.15% of the total debt raised for Council Tax and 0.55% for NNDR.  Of the overall amount 
written off for Council Tax and NNDR, 61.57% of this is owing to bankruptcies and 
liquidations.  

The amount written off in respect of Sundry Debts has doubled from the previous year.  This 
is owing to a variety of reasons, one being that we have increased our recovery activity in 
this area.  The largest increase is in the bankruptcy and liquidation category, over which we 
have little control. The next largest is in the over £500 ‘no further action’ possible category 
and these debts relate in the main to former tenant arrears.  During 2002/03 we received 
written confirmation from the Department of Works and Pension that we could not recover 
former tenant rent arrears from ongoing benefit and this accounts for the majority of debts in 
this category. The amount written off still only represents 0.67% of the debt raised, with 30% 
of this due to bankruptcies and liquidations.   

All write-offs are the subject of a formal authorisation procedure as agreed by the County 
Treasurer. 

8



Alternative Options 

There are no alternative options. 

Consultees 

None identified. 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

9



10



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\6\6\AI00002668\WriteoffsApps.AandB0.doc 

APPENDIX A  
 
 

COUNCIL TAX 
 
 
 
Detail 

Amount written-
off 2002/03 

DR 
£ 

Amount 
written-off 
2001/2002 

DR 
£ 

 
Bankruptcy or Liquidation 

 
24,071.92 

 
9,008.96

 
Unable to Trace Debtors 
 
 

 
80,756.67 

 

 
145,298.33

 

 
Written off by Magistrates at Committal hearing 

 
1183.53 

 
8,674.06

 
Miscellaneous 

 
14,735.53 

 

 
6,426.11

 

 
 
TOTAL 

 
 

120,747.65 
 

 
 

169,407.46
 

 
 
 
 

11



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\6\6\AI00002668\WriteoffsApps.AandB0.doc 

APPENDIX B 
 
 
 

NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES 
 
 
 
Detail 

Amount written-
off 

2002/03 
DR 
£ 

Amount 
written-off 

2001/02 
DR 
£ 

 
Bankruptcy or Liquidation 

 
166,069.89 

 
286,362.73

 
Unable to Trace Debtors 
 
 

 
43,656.42 

 

 
88,104.74

 

 
Miscellaneous 

 
14,963.51 

 

 
3,617.07

 
TOTAL 

 
224,689.82 

 
378,084.54

 
 
 

12



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\6\6\AI00002668\WriteoffsAppendixC0.doc 

APPENDIX C  
 

Sundry Debtors 
 
 
 
Detail 

Amount 
written-off 

2002/03 
DR 
£ 

Amount 
written-off 

2001/02 
DR 
£ 

 
Bankruptcy or Liquidation: 
Over £500 
£100-£499 
 

 
 

40,609.41
2,225.75

 

 
 

2,220.17 
1,299.07 

 
 
Unable to Trace Debtors 
Over £500 
£100-£499 
 

 
 

17,441.24
9,412.08

 
 

12,322.64 
9,391.44 

 
No Further Action Possible 
Over £500 
£100-£499 

 
 

32,260.33
24,815.32

 
 

12,094.81 
21,070.00 

 
Debts below £100 
This category includes those accounts where the 
issue of a court summons is not considered cost 
effective as the summons issue fee is £27.00.   
 

 
16,590.24

 
13,858.71 

 
 
TOTAL 

 
 

143,354.37
 

 
 

72,256.84 
 

 
 
 

 

13



14



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Geoff Cole, Head of Culture, Leisure and Education for Life on (01432) 260721 

POSITION STATEMENT FOR REPLACEMENT POOL  
FOR NORTH HEREFORDSHIRE 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY: COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL 
DEVELOPMENT 

CABINET 27TH NOVEMBER, 2003 
 
Wards Affected 

All wards in North Herefordshire (North of Roman Road). 

Purpose 

To note the timetable, costings and detailed design for the provision of a new pool in 
Leominster, further to the resolutions of Cabinet of 17th July, 2003 and Council of 25th July, 
2003. 

Key Decision  

This is a Key Decision because it is significant in terms of its effect on communities living or 
working in an area comprising two or more wards.  A Notice in accordance with Section 15 
of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Access to Information) Regulations 2000 
was sent to the Chairman of Social and Economic Development Scrutiny. 

Recommendations 

THAT (a) the Council proceeds within the detail of this report for the provision of 
a new pool for North Herefordshire; and 

 (b) all other options for provision are therefore discounted. 

Reasons 

The detail and various reasons have been recorded in the report of 17th July, 2003. 

The funding opportunity through Sport England to develop a new site is not available.  
Consequently, the development of this pool will place the burden fully on Herefordshire 
Council. 

Considerations 

1. The financial assessment is an exempt item and is appendixed to this report. 

2. The issues to be considered in respect of the provision of a new pool are the cost 
plan, timetable, and tendering process. 

3. The estimated timetable for the North Herefordshire Swimming Pool is as follows: 

• 12th January, 2004 – out to tender 

• 9th February, 2004 – return of tenders 

AGENDA ITEM 7

15



• Early March 2004 – award of contract 

• There will be a mobilisation period with a commencement date of March/April 
2004 

• July 2005 – completion. 

4. It is intended to progress with the plans outlined and approved by Planning in August 
2001, although within the context of that planning approval it has been necessary to 
make alterations picking up public comments, but these do not affect the overall 
planning consent. 

5. At the Council meeting held on 25th July, 2003, Councillors B. Hunt and 
P.J. Dauncey gave notice of the following motion: 

 "In view of Council's support for swimming pool provision in North Herefordshire, and 
recognising the overwhelming support by local people for a Bromyard Pool, we urge 
this Council to give maximum support to this project and to investigate a Bromyard 
scheme concurrently with the Leominster project." 

 Urgency was not moved and the matter stood referred to the Cabinet Member 
(Community and Social Development).   

6. It should be noted that the pool to be built in Leominster will be the only swimming 
pool built in the County for the forseeable future.  It is not intended to progress with 
suggestions for other pools at this time. 

7. It is anticipated that the budget for running the new North Herefordshire pool will be 
constrained within the existing client budget for the former pool operation.  However it 
is intended that the Leisure Trust (Halo) will manage this facility as part of their 
agreement.  It is also intended that an assessment will be made during the first year 
as to actual subsidy and cost to run and manage this new facility.  Further 
discussions with Halo will then take place as to the actual level of subsidy. 

8. The old Sydonia pool has been demolished and the site has been levelled. 

Alternative Options 

Cabinet resolve not to proceed. 

Risk Management 

As per consultant risk register. 

Consultees 

County Treasurer 
County Secretary and Solicitor 
Property Services Manager 
Parks, Countryside and Leisure Development Manager 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

16



17

Document is Restricted



18


